
Approved 2/28/2012 

Village of La Grange Park 
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

January 24, 2012 
 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of La Grange Park, Illinois was 
scheduled on January 24, 2012 at 7:30 p.m., in the Board Room of the La Grange Park 
Municipal Building. 
 
Village President James Discipio called the meeting to order at 7:32 pm. He asked all in 
attendance to rise for the Pledge of Allegiance. After the Pledge, he asked Village Clerk Seidel to 
call the roll. 
 
Board Members in attendance were:  
                                                                            Trustees:   Rimas Kozica 
 Scott Mesick  
 LaVelle Topps  
 Marshall Seeder 
 Susan Storcel 
 Patricia Rocco 
 
                                                                         Village President: James Discipio  
 

Also in Attendance were:        
                                                  Village Manager: Julia Cedillo 
     Assistant Village Manager: Emily Rodman  

Village Attorney: Cathleen Keating  
                                                Village Clerk:  Amanda Seidel 
                                       Village Engineer: Paul Flood 
      Finance Manager: Pierre Garesche 
      Fire Chief:  Dean Maggos 
      Police Chief:  Dan McCollum 
    Interim Director of Public Works: Rick Raddy  
                 
                
 
President Discipio said the first item on the Agenda was a presentation.  President Discipio asked 
Joseph Sauer to approach the microphone. President Discipio presented Joseph a Certificate of 
Achievement for attaining the coveted rank of Eagle Scout. Joseph completed a Rain Garden in 
the parkway at Jackson and Waiola for his Leadership Service Project. 
 
Trustee Seeder wanted to congratulate Joseph and thank him for all the invaluable information 
provided. 
 
 
 



Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 2 
 
Public Participation 
 
President Discipio said the next item on the Agenda was Public Participation.  He asked if there 
were any citizens who wished to address the Board.  
 
First to address the Board was Mr. Rob Koncel of 713 Beach Ave. He passed out a packet of 
photos and information in regards to the Public Works Facility. Mr. Koncel wanted to point out 
the bad condition and the fact that the Public Works building is in serious disrepair. 
 
Second to address the Board was Mr. Fred Weiss of 627 N. Brainard. He commented that we 
have received grant money for the Public Works Building and grants should be signed now if 
specifications can be met. 
 
Third to address the Board was Carol Rocco of 27 Pine Ave. She commented on the Public 
Works Facility and we should utilize the grants and a new structure will provide efficiency and 
sustainability in the future. 
 
Fourth to address the Board was Karen Koncel of 713 Beach Ave. She commented on the Public 
Works Facility and said the grants should be signed now. 
 
Fifth to address the Board was Mr. Lloyd Hyman of 303 N. Ashland. He urged the board to 
approve the grant and thank Trustee Mesick for his hard work on the Public Works Garage. 
 
There were no other citizens who wished to address the Board so President Discipio moved on to 
the Consent Agenda. 
 
Consent Agenda  
 
Village Clerk Seidel said the following items were on the Consent Agenda for approval: 
 

A. Approval of Minutes 
(i) Work Session Meeting – November 8, 2011 
(ii) Village Board Meeting – November 22, 2011 
(iii) Work Session Meeting – December 13, 2011 
(iv) Work Session Meeting – January 10, 2012  

B. Action- Motion to approve payment of $8,633.00 to DuPage Security Solutions from 
Justice Assistance Grant Funds. 

C. Action- Motion to Approve the Proposal from Air One Equipment, Inc. foe the Purchase 
of New Rescue Air Lifting Bags and System- Grant Funded 

D. Action- Motion to Approve Resolution Approving Audit Services Agreement 
E. Motion to Authorize the President and Chairperson of the Finance Committee to sign the 

register for bills, and authorize the Treasurer and Village Clerk to sign checks in 
payment of operating bills and salaries as itemized in the Check Registers  



Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 3 
 

F. Motion to Authorize the Village Treasurer and Village Clerk to sign checks in the 
payment of payroll and other bills that become due between this date and February 28, 
2012 subsequent approval of the Payroll Register and Voucher Register by the Board of 
Trustees at its regular meeting to be held on February 28, 2012.  

 
After Clerk Seidel finished reading, President Discipio asked for a motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda as read.  Trustee Storcel had a change to November 22, 2011 Village Board 
Meeting Minutes.  President Discipio had a change to January 10, 2012 Work Session Meeting 
Minutes.  President Discipio asked for a motion to remove items A(ii) and A(iv). There was no 
discussion and the motion to approve the Consent Agenda with items A(iii) and A(iv) removed 
was made by Trustee Mesick and seconded by Trustee Seeder and passed unanimously on a roll 
call vote. 
 
President Discipio stated the removed minutes will be addressed during the Administration 
Committee report. 
 
Trustee Seeder wanted to thank Village Manager Cedillo for her handout distributed on Auditor 
Services. 
 
Village Manager’s Report  
 
Village Manager Julia Cedillo said she had nothing to report. 
 
ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE  

A. MONTHLY REPORT  
 
Trustee Storcel summarized the Administration Committee report which was combined for the 
months of November and December. 
 
She said a Post Office telephone survey was conducted on January 18th by Ask America. 484 
Households completed the survey. Data from Ask America has been distributed to the Trustees. 
 
She said there will be a Post Office Open House at Village Hall on Monday, January 30th from 
5:00pm to 7:00 pm to invite residents to provide input on the importance of maintaining the 
LaGrange Park Post Office Branch. 
 
She said on December 13th , the Village Board approved placing a referendum question on the 
March 20, 2012 ballot regarding municipal electrical aggregation. If passed, the referendum will 
allow the Village to solicit competitive bids for an electric power supplier to potentially serve 
residential and small business owners who have not decided to “opt-out” of the program. 
Information reading the upcoming referendum was included in the most recent edition of the 
Rose Clippings and is available on the Villages website. In the upcoming months, the Village 
will be distributing additional information to residents about the municipal aggregation process. 



Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 4 
 
If the referendum is approved, the Village would also conduct two public hearings in April or 
May to provide residents the opportunity to ask questions and provide input on the process. 
  
She said the Village would like to encourage all residents to sign up for E-Briefs for current 
Village updates. 
 
She said the Village would like to remind residents that as of January 1st of this year a majority 
of electronics were banned from landfills in the State of Illinois. For more information on how to 
properly dispose of these items, residents may contact the Village or visit www.earth911.com. 
 
She said the Christmas Walk and Tree Lighting Ceremony was well attended. A special thanks to 
Cub Scott Pack 66 and Boy Scott Troop 39 for leading the ceremony. Also thank you to the 
LaGrange Park Business Association and the Community Park District. 
 
She said there have been some Village personnel changes. The Villages Director of Public 
Works Julius Hansen accepted a position with the Village of Glen Ellyn, the Villages Water 
Operator Rick Radde is serving as Interim Public Works Director. Thank you for all the help 
with the recent snow fall. Emily Rodman joined the Village on December 5th as the new 
Assistant Village Manager. 
 
This concluded her report.  
 
Trustee Storcel moved on to the amendment of minutes.  
 
Trustee Storcel said there were Veterans names read in to the record that were inadvertently left 
off of the Village Board Meeting Minutes of November 22. Trustee Seeder made a motion to 
approve Minutes of November 22 Village Board Meeting as amended with additional veteran 
names added. Trustee Kozica seconded the motion and the motion to adjourn passed 
unanimously on a roll call vote.   
 
President Discipio moved on to the next set of minutes.  Trustee Storcel said the Auditor name 
Seldon Fox was inadvertently left off the Village Work Session Meeting Minutes of January 10, 
2012 on Page 4, 2nd paragraph. Trustee Mesick made a motion to approve Minutes of January 10, 
2012 Village Work Session as amended reflecting the name Seldon Fox. Trustee Seeder 
seconded the motion and the motion to adjourn passed unanimously on a roll call vote.   
 
BUILDING AND ZONING COMMITTEE  

A. MONTHLY REPORT  
 

Trustee Rimas Kozica said there were 65 building permits were issued in November, compared 
to 78 in November of 2010.  
 

http://www.earth911.com/


Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 5 
 
He said estimated construction costs for November were substantially less than what they were 
in November of 2010. Permit fees collected were also substantially less. A portion of this was 
due to the fact that permit was issued for a new home in November of 2010. 
 
He said there were 121 inspections conducted in November of 2011, compared to 156 in 
November of 2010. He said of the inspections, 21 were not approved.  
 
He said discussions and meetings took place between staff and Bethlehem Woods representatives 
in regards some minor interior renovations and upgrading the emergency generator to provide 
power to some elevators during power outages. 
 
This concluded his report for November. 
 
Trustee Rimas Kozica said there were 39 building permits were issued in December, compared 
to 50 in December of 2010.  
 
He said estimated construction costs for December were substantially less than what they were in 
December of 2010. Permit fees collected were also substantially less.  
 
He said there were 114 inspections conducted in December of 2011, compared to 88 in 
December of 2010. He said of the inspections, 23 were not approved.  
 
He said staff attended the Suburban Building Officials Conference annual meeting. At such, 
Code Enforcement Officer/Building Inspector Rob Wierzba was elected and installed as an 
Executive Director of this organization. 
 
This concluded his report for December. 
 
ENGINEERING & CAPITAL PROJECTS COMMITTEE  

A. MONTHLY REPORT  
 
Trustee Marshal Seeder said the major construction items are complete on the Beach Avenue 
project, pending a punch-list and a Spring walk through. 
 
He said the Morgan and Blanchan project construction items are also complete, pending a punch-
list and Spring walk through. 
 
He said the Concrete Restoration of Utility Work which replaced curb and gutter removed from 
prior water and sewer repairs, has been completed by Andreas & Sons.  
 
He said unfortunately pavement repair work was not completed on Harding from Stone to 
Kensington, due to the inability to find a contractor who could work within budgetary restraints. 
 
This concluded his report for November.  



Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 6 
 
 
He said the construction phase of the sewer lining project has been completed. 
 
This concluded his report for December. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  

A. MONTHLY REPORT  
 
Trustee LaVelle Topps started with the Police Department Summary for November. He said 
President Discipio and Chief McCollum attended the Cook County Sheriff’s Youth Medal of 
Honor Ceremony at the university of Illinois in Chicago on November 7th. Over 350 Cook 
County High School students were recognized for their efforts in volunteering 100 or more hours 
of service to their respective communities. Four La Grange Park students, Matthew McGuinn, 
Takijah Pettigrem, Kristin Ripoli and Matthew Serafin received Medal of Honor recognition. 
 
He said all the Villages crossing guards received additional refresher training in November 
courtesy of a video program loaned to us by IRMA’s library. 
 
He said full time sworn members received defensive tactics and arrestee control training from 
instructor Matt McNamara during three separate sessions. Mr. McNamara has taught law 
enforcement personnel throughout the United States. He donated his time to assist our personnel. 
 
He said LaGrange Park was selected by the Proviso Township Mental Health Commission as a 
pilot site for a new electronic monitoring program designed to quickly locate missing persons 
suffering from Alzheimer’s disease or other forms of dementia. A two-day training program was 
conducted at the Police Department to familiarize members with the equipment. Other Illinois  
Communities, including Crystal Lake and Naperville are already using this technology. This is a 
free offering and will certainly benefit our community. 
 
That concluded the Police Department report for November and he moved on to the December 
report.  
 
Trustee LaVelle Topps said overall crime for the year 2011 was almost identical to the previous 
year, with 318 crimes reported, compared to 320 during 2010. He said burglaries decreased 31%, 
with 24 reported in 2011, compared to 35 during the previous twelve months. He said criminal 
damage (vandalism) incidents dropped from 55 reported in 2010 to only 38 in 2011. This 
decrease also amounts to almost 31%. He said there were no robberies reported during 2011. He 
said the largest increase in any category occurred in the crime of battery, where 73 incidents 
occurred in 2011, compared to 60 during 2010. As previously reported to the President and 
Board of Trustees, the majority of these incidents are the result of domestic disturbance calls and 
are not typically preventable by law enforcement. He said criminal arrests were down sharply, 
with 33 during 2011, compared to 58 during 2010. He said in 2011, there was an increase of 37% 
in the number of traffic citations issued. 3,482 citations were issued in 2011, compared to 2,543 
in 2010. 



Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 7 
 
 
He said members of the Police Department participated in over 1,400 hours of training during 
2011. Also, 18 different courses were offered at the LaGrange Park Village Hall and the Village 
was recognized with a certificate from North East Multi-Regional Training as being one of the 
premier host sites in the Chicago metropolitan area. 
 
That concluded the Police Department report for December.  
 
Trustee Topps started with the Fire Department report for November. He said there were 97 
EMS responses this month and 1168 year-to-date. Last year, there were 1402 year-to-date at this 
same time. There were 27 fire and/or rescue incidents this month and 541 year-to-date. Last year, 
there were 551 year-to-date at this time.  
 
He said personnel conducted a candidate orientation for those interested in beginning the testing 
process for paid-on-call firefighter positions. Also during the month, personnel conducted the 
agility testing for this process. 
 
He said during the month, personnel conducted a Community CPR course for ten people through 
out partnership with the Community Park District. 
 
He said personnel also conducted fire extinguisher training for employees of the American 
Nuclear Society. 
 
He said fire sprinkler pressure testing was conducted for new sprinklers being installed in the 
440 N. Sherwood space at the Village Market north building for a new tenant. 
 
He said during the month, two  new PSSI paramedic/firefighters joined our staff; Jacob Buikema 
and Brian Wittman. 
 
This concluded his report for November.  
 
Trustee Topps moved on to the Fire Department report for December. He said there were 113 
EMS responses this month and 1281 year-to-date. Last year, there were 1522 year-to-date at this 
same time. There were 39 fire and/or rescue incidents this month and 580 year-to-date. Last year, 
there were 604 year-to-date at this time.  
 
He said personnel assisted with the Holiday in the Park with the delivery of Santa Claus by fire 
engine and conducting a holiday fire safety demonstration for attendees. 
 
He said personnel conducted a fire safety presentation and tour of Fire Station 1 for Boy Scouts. 
 
He said on December 17th, personnel assisted with the homecoming of Marine Josh Misiewicz. 
 



Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 8 
 
He said personnel volunteered their time during the month to assist the Park District with 
completing the preparation of the ice rinks at Memorial Park. 
 
He said during the month, two of our newest paramedics attended a CPR and AED Instructor 
course. 
 
This concluded his report for December.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE  

A. MONTHLY REPORT  
 
Trustee Scott Mesick read the monthly report for November. 
 
In regards to Public Works Operations he said over 2,700 yards of leaves were picked up 
throughout the Village, amounting to approximately 424 tons which were removed by Homer 
Industries between 11/9 and 11/23. He said 4 deliveries of mulch, totaling 18 yards. Completed 
parkway repairs at 4 locations where trees had been removed, totaling 238 square feet repaired 
and 3.75 cubic yards of dirt used. 2 tons of asphalt material used for potholes, and to put in a 
temporary approach on Forest. Several individual brush pick ups and tree branch trimmings, 
throughout the Village. Sweeper continued working through town cleaning up after leaf pick-up. 
261 miles of street were cleaned, removing 56 cubic yards of waste, using over 850 gallons of 
water. Public Work’s building general maintenance. 
 
He said various repairs and preventative maintenance were performed on Public Works Vehicle 
& Equipment Units, Police Vehicles and Fire Vehicle and Equipment. 
 
He said the Village purchased 34,441,000 gallons of water from the Brookfield/North Riverside 
Water Commission. 1 water main break was repaired, 1 water leak was repaired. 1,446 water 
meters were read in section #2. 50 monthly accounts and 16 final meter readings were taken.  
He said various inspections, appointments, and service calls were also performed. 15 water 
samples were taken and all samples successfully passed IEPA standards. 109 utility locations 
were identified prior to excavations. 3 valve box repairs were made. 
 
This concluded his report for November.  Trustee Scott Mesick read the monthly report for 
December. 
 
In regards to Public Works Operations he said due to the departure of the Public Works Director, 
two seasonal employees have been rehired on a part-time basis for the next several months to 
help off-set the shortage of staff during winter operations. Leaf pick-up was completed during 
the month in section 2 and Section 3, with close to 2,000 yards being moved from the streets to 
the Villages dumpsite. Homer Industries then removed close to 1,000 yards of leaves from the 
dump, and the remainder was ground up to create leaf compost and some mixed with the existing 
brush to make regular mulch. Inclement weather allowed the sweeper to continue working 
through town cleaning up after leaf pick-up. 288 miles of street were cleaned, removing 212 



Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 9 
 
cubic yards of waste- using over 4430 gallons of water. One delivery of mulch was made totaling 
12 yards. Utility concrete restoration work was completed in 24 locations. The contractor poured 
10 new sidewalk squares, 180 linear feet of curb and 301 square feet of driveway approach. 
Parkway repairs were completed at 31 locations, including all areas where concrete restoration 
occurred. Approximately 5 cubic yards of dirt was used. 17.5 tons of asphalt material was used 
for potholes, filling close to 2,000 potholes throughout the Village. Salting the streets was 
performed twice during the month, totaling 27.3 tons of salt used on 452.9 miles of Village 
Street. 
 
He said Various repairs and preventative maintenance were performed on Public Works Vehicle 
& Equipment Units, Police Vehicles and Fire Vehicle and Equipment. 
 
He said the Village purchased 36,341,000 gallons of water from the Brookfield/North Riverside 
Water Commission. 1 water main break was repaired, 3 water leaks was repaired. 1,339 water 
meters were read in section #3. 50 monthly accounts and 17 final meter readings were taken.  
He said various inspections, appointments, and service calls were also performed. 15 water 
samples were taken and all samples successfully passed IEPA standards. 86 utility locations were 
identified prior to excavations. 6 valve box repairs were made. 1 new hydrant was installed at 
30th and Alima. 
 
This concluded his report for December. 
 
Trustee Mesick moved on to his next item which was discussion and action of accepting bid 
proposal for build-out of 2011 GMC Cab and Chassis. Trustee Mesick proceeded by reading the 
Village Board Agenda Memo from January 16th regarding Build-Out of 2011 One-ton Dump 
Truck. 
 
After brief discussion, Trustee Mesick made the motion to authorize the full build-out of the 
dump truck with RG Smith Equipment Company for a total amount of $32,682. Trustee Storcel 
seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously on a roll call vote.  
 
Trustee Seeder commented on the excellent work by Public Works during the recent storms. 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE  

A. MONTHLY REPORT  
 
Trustee Patricia Rocco said as of November 30, 2011 the Village was 58.3% of the way through 
its fiscal year. All five of our operating departments have spent less than 58.3% of their budgets, 
so we have expenditures well under control at this point in time. 
 
She said the Village’s General Fund has recorded $4,073,000 in revenue and $3,211,000 in 
expenses through November 30th, representing an $862,000 surplus. That surplus was $302,000 
larger than the $560,000 surplus we were showing at the end of November last year. Revenues 
are 3.2% higher than last year and expenses are 5.2% lower than last year. 



Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 10 
 
 
She said Real estate tax revenue, sales tax revenue and income tax revenue are all somewhat 
higher that last year’s numbers. All three of these revenues are coming in very close to what we 
anticipates based on their respective budgets. Vehicle sticker sales and revenue from ambulance 
service are coming I slightly lowered than expected. 
 
She said water sales of $1,520,000 represent 60.8% of the budgeted figure, which is about where 
we would expect to be this time of year. The sales are 1.5% higher than last year’s results. 
Similarly, Sewer Fund revenue related to wastewater service charges is slightly higher than last 
year and is tracking very closely to our budget expectations. 
 
She said the “Other Professional Services” line item in the General Fund’s Administration 
Department shows we spent $1,880.00 during the month of November. Of that amount, $630 
reflects a payment to Cagwood Consulting for lobbying, $350 was a payment to American Legal 
Publishing Corporation for the annual Internet service they provide in relation to the Village’s 
Municipal Code, and $900 was paid to Avenet Web Solutions as the annual cost for its web-
hosting service in relation to the Village’s website.  
 
This concluded the Finance Committee’s Report for November. 
 
Trustee Patricia Rocco said we are now2/3 of the way through its fiscal year as of December 31, 
2011. The General Fund shows a strong year-to-date surplus of $541,000. This is $169,000 better 
than the $372,000 surplus we were experiencing at this time last year. 
 
She said total General Fund revenues of $4,425,000 represent 60% of budgeted revenues, which 
is less than the 66.7% we might expect at this point of the fiscal year. This is due in part to the 
fact we have only collected approximately 45% of the real-estate tax we can expect to collect for 
the year. We have not yet collected any tax on the 2011 levy the board passed this last 
November. That money will start arriving in late February. Sales Tax is coming in at a pace 
almost identical to last year as is the telecommunications tax. The state income tax is about 
$20,000 higher than last year while our utility taxes are running a bit behind. 
 
She said the various village departments continue doing an excellent job containing costs in 
relation to their budgets. Remembering that we are 66.7% of the way through the fiscal year, the 
Administration Department has expended 55.8% of its budget, the Police Department 48.4%, the 
Fire Department 57.7%, Public Works 56.9%, and the building Department 53.2%. Overall, 
52.6% of the General Fund budget has been expended. 
 
She said the “Other Professional Services” line item in the General Fund’s Administration 
Department shows we spent $1,755.00 during the month of December. We paid $2,250 to 
Cagwood Consulting for December lobbying services. Of that amount, $1,755 was allocated as a 
General Fund expense, $270 was allocated as a Water Fund expense, and $225 was allocated to 
the Sewer Fund. 
 



Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 11 
 
This concluded the Finance Committee’s Report for December. 
 
VILLAGE CLERK  

A. MONTHLY REPORT  
 

Village Clerk Amanda Seidel said she had nothing to report.  
 
VILLAGE ENGINEER  

A. MONTHLY REPORT  
 
Village Engineer Paul Flood said he had nothing to report.  
 
VILLAGE ATTORNEY  

A. MONTHLY REPORT  
 
Village Attorney Keating said she had nothing to report.  
 
COMMITTEE AND COLLECTORS REPORT  

A. MONTHLY REPORT  
 

There were no other reports; President Discipio said he would entertain a motion to approve the 
Committee and Collector reports as presented. Trustee Mesick made the motion to approve the 
Committee and Collector reports as presented. Trustee Seeder seconded the motion, and the 
motion to approve Committee and Collector’s reports passed unanimously on a voice vote.  
 
Village President’s Report  
 
President Discipio wanted to remind residents of the Post Office Open House on January 30th 
and the fact that Congressman Lipinski would be attending. 
 
President Discipio wanted to thank Public Works for there hard work. 
 
This concluded his report, President Discipio said the next item was Public Participation on non-
agenda related items.  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
There was none. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
There was none 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 



Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 12 
 
At 8:25 Trustee Seeder asked for a 5 minute recess President Discipio reconvened the Board 
Meeting at 8:30 pm. 
 
President Discipio moved on to Public Works Garage Committee items of discussion and action 
of DCEO Grant Agreements of the Public Works Facility. Trustee Mesick proceeded to 
summarize the Village Board Agenda Memo from January 17th regarding the Public Works 
Garage Grant Documentation. At the January 10th Village Board Work Session, three grant 
documents were presented to the Village Board for the purposes of seeking approval for the 
Village President to sign of on the grant agreements. These grant documents include three grants 
totaling $600,000 that have been awarded to the Village as part of the 2009 Illinois Jobs Now 
Capital Bill. In November the Village was notified that all three grants have progressed to a point 
where an agreement must be approved by the municipality. At the Work Session, there were 
concerns regarding the scope of work and desire for greater public awareness of the project. 
 
Village Manager Cedillo presented a Power Point Presentation and passed out copies of her 
presentation to all Board Members. Village Manager Cedillo presented her Public Works Facility 
Project Power Point which started with site maps and photos of the existing facility. The 
presentation continued with a timeline of the project starting in 2006 and the approach and 
assessments that have been done.  Details of the Conceptual Design Assesment were shown. In 
February 2011 the project was put on hold after the Board decided not to proceed to advance the 
conceptual design to a more detailed schematic design due to uncertainty of the Capital Bill 
Grant Funds. The presentation concluded with next steps of the project and looking for feedback 
from the board.   
 
Discussion started with comments and concerns of Board Members. Trustee Rocco wanted to 
thank staff for there hard work and effort, she said she sees no down side to accepting grant 
funds this evening. Trustee Seeder said the power point had a lot of information and also 
expressed many concerns on timing and cost, and also was looking for clarification on phase 3. 
Trustee Kozica expressed his concerns. 
 
At 9:17 pm President Discipio asked for a 5 minute recess President Discipio reconvened the 
Board Meeting at 9:25 pm. 
 
Village Manager Cedillo clarified a few concerns on timing by telling the Board that is suggested 
to sign the Grant Agreement by February 17th and the Village did not receive notice of the Grant 
Funds until November 15th, 2011. Village Manager Cedillo also said she would ask the 
Architecture Firm about obtaining an updated cost estimate. Engineer Flood commented that the 
scope of the work has not changed. 
 
Trustee Topps wanted to thank staff and Village Manager Cedillo for her presentation; he also 
said he was in favor of moving forward and saving resident money. Trustee Storcel shared her 
concerns and found the process confusing and unfocused, she said she wanted more clarification. 
President Discipio commented on the urgency of time in regards to the grant agreements. Trustee 
Mesick reiterated his suggestion to move forward and sign documents now. Trustee Rocco said 



Minutes 
Village of La Grange Park – Board Meeting 
January 24, 2012 
Page 13 
 
she was in favor of moving forward. Trustee Seeder expressed his concern over unknown costs. 
Trustee Kozica also expressed his concern over unknown costs. Trustee Topps said everyone is 
looking at saving money which the grants will do. Trustee Storcel said she had nothing to add. 
 
Trustee Seeder made a motion to table the motion to authorize the Village President to sign the 
attached DCEO Grant Agreements at the January 24, 2012 Village Board Work Session 
Meeting. The motion was seconded by Trustee Storcel.   Clerk Seidel called the roll:  Trustee 
Kozica – Yes, Trustee Mesick – No, Trustee Topps – No, Trustee Seeder – Yes, Trustee Storcel 
– Yes, and Trustee Rocco – No, President Discipio –No. The motion to table failed by a vote of 4 
to 3.     
 
Trustee Mesick made a motion to authorize the Village President to sign the attached DCEO 
Grant Agreements at the January 24, 2012 Village Board Work Session Meeting. The motion 
was seconded by Trustee Rocco.  Clerk Seidel called the roll:  Trustee Kozica – No, Trustee 
Mesick – Yes, Trustee Topps – Yes, Trustee Seeder – No, Trustee Storcel – No, and Trustee 
Rocco – Yes, President Discipio -- Yes.  The motion passed by a vote of 4 to 3.   
 
President Discipio wanted to thank all the Legislators who helped the Village get the Grant 
funding for this project. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
President Discipio said he would entertain a motion to adjourn. There was a motion by Trustee 
Mesick to adjourn the evening’s meeting. The motion was seconded by Trustee Seeder. The 
motion to adjourn passed unanimously on a voice vote.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:02 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
Amanda G. Seidel  
Village Clerk 


